

Docket No. 50-271  
BVY 99-139

Attachment 3

Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station

Proposed Technical Specification Change No. 224

Reactor Power Distribution Limits Applicability

Marked-up Version of the Current Technical Specifications

1.1 SAFETY LIMIT

B. Core Thermal Power Limit  
(Reactor Pressure < 800 psia  
or Core Flow < 10% of Rated)

When the reactor pressure is <800 psia or core flow <10% of rated, the core thermal power shall not exceed 25% of rated thermal power.

C. Power Transient

To ensure that the safety limit established in Specification 1.1A and 1.1B is not exceeded, each required scram shall be initiated by its expected scram signal. The safety limit shall be assumed to be exceeded when scram is accomplished by means other than the expected scram signal.

D. Whenever the reactor is shutdown with irradiated fuel in the reactor vessel, the water level shall not be less than 12 inches above the top of the enriched fuel when it is seated in the core.

2.1 LIMITING SAFETY SYSTEM SETTING

$\Delta W$  = difference between two loop and single loop drive flow at the same core flow. This difference must be accounted for during single loop operation.  $\Delta W = 0$  for two loop operation.

1  
at  $\geq 25\%$   
Rated Thermal  
Power

In the event of operation with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP greater than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be increased by the ratio:  $\frac{MFLPD}{FRP}$

where:

MFLPD = maximum fraction of limiting power density where the limiting power density is defined in the Core Operating Limits Report.

FRP = fraction of rated power (1593 Mwt).

2  
at  $\geq 25\%$   
Rated Thermal  
Power

In the event of operation with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP equal to or less than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be equal to or greater than 1.0.

VYNPS

1.1 SAFETY LIMIT

2.1 LIMITING SAFETY SYSTEM SETTING

For no combination of loop recirculation flow rate and core thermal power shall the APRM flux scram trip setting be allowed to exceed 120% of rated thermal power.

b. Flux Scram Trip Setting (Refuel or Startup and Hot Standby Mode)

When the reactor mode switch is in the REFUEL or STARTUP position, average power range monitor (APRM) scram shall be set down to less than or equal to 15% of rated neutron flux (except as allowed by Note 12 of Table 3.1.1). The IRM flux scram setting shall be set at less than or equal to 120/125 of full scale.

B. APRM Rod Block Trip Setting

- 1. The APRM rod block trip setting shall be as shown in Figure 2.1.1 and shall be:

$S_{RB} \leq 0.66(W-\Delta W) + 42\%$

where:

S<sub>RB</sub> = rod block setting in percent of rated thermal power (1593 MWt)

W = percent rated two loop drive flow where 100% rated drive flow is that flow equivalent to 48 x 10<sup>6</sup> lbs/hr core flow

3  
When the mode switch is in the RUN position,

1.1 SAFETY LIMIT

2.1 LIMITING SAFETY SYSTEM SETTING

$\Delta W$  = difference between two loop and single loop drive flow at the same core flow. This difference must be accounted for during single loop operation.  $\Delta W = 0$  for two loop operation.

4

In the event of operation with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP greater than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be increased by the ratio:

$$\frac{\text{MFLPD}}{\text{FRP}}$$

where:

MFLPD = maximum fraction of limiting power density where the limiting power density is defined in the Core Operating Limits Report.

FRP = fraction of rated power (1593 MWt).

at  $\geq 25\%$   
Rated Thermal Power

5

In the event of operation with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP equal to or less than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be equal to or greater than 1.0.

C. Reactor low water level scram setting shall be at least 127 inches above the top of the enriched fuel.

VYNPS

3.1 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

3.1 REACTOR PROTECTION SYSTEM

Applicability:

Applies to the operability of plant instrumentation and control systems required for reactor safety.

Objective:

To specify the limits imposed on plant operation by those instrument and control systems required for reactor safety.

Specification:

A. Plant operation at any power level shall be permitted in accordance with Table 3.1.1. The system response time from the opening of the sensor contact up to and including the opening of the scram solenoid relay shall not exceed 50 milliseconds.

at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power

7

B. During operation with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP greater than 1.0 either:

- a. The APRM System gains shall be adjusted by the ratios given in Technical Specifications 2.1.A.1 and 2.1.B or
b. The power distribution shall be changed to reduce the ratio of MFLPD to FRP.

4.1 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

4.1 REACTOR PROTECTION SYSTEM

Applicability:

Applies to the surveillance of the plant instrumentation and control systems required for reactor safety.

Objective:

To specify the type and frequency of surveillance to be applied to those instrument and control systems required for reactor safety.

Specification:

A. Instrumentation systems shall be functionally tested and calibrated as indicated in Tables 4.1.1 and 4.1.2, respectively

6

Once within 12 hours after  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power and

B. Once a day during reactor power operation, the maximum fraction of limiting power density and fraction of rated power shall be determined and the APRM system gains shall be adjusted by the ratios given in Technical Specifications 2.1.A.1.a and 2.1.B.

at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power thereafter,

7

VYNPS

BASES:

4.1 REACTOR PROTECTION SYSTEM

A. The scram sensor channels listed in Tables 4.1.1 and 4.1.2 are divided into three groups: A, B and C. Sensors that make up Group A are the on-off type and will be tested and calibrated at the indicated intervals. Initially the tests are more frequent than Yankee experience indicates necessary. However, by testing more frequently, the confidence level with this instrumentation will increase and testing will provide data to justify extending the test intervals as experience is accrued.

Group B devices utilize an analog sensor followed by an amplifier and bistable trip circuit. This type of equipment incorporates control room mounted indicators and annunciator alarms. A failure in the sensor or amplifier may be detected by an alarm or by an operator who observes that one indicator does not track the others in similar channels. The bistable trip circuit failures are detected by the periodic testing.

Group C devices are active only during a given portion of the operating cycle. For example, the IRM is active during start-up and inactive during full-power operation. Testing of these instruments is only meaningful within a reasonable period prior to their use.

B. The ratio of MELPD to FRP shall be checked once per day to determine if the APRM gains require adjustment. Because few control rod movements or power changes occur, checking these parameters daily is adequate.

The 12 hour allowance after thermal power  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power is achieved is acceptable given the large inherent margin to operating limits at low power levels.

6

7 when operating at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power

VYNPS

3.11 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

3.11 REACTOR FUEL ASSEMBLIES

Applicability:

The Limiting Conditions for Operation associated with the fuel rods apply to these parameters which monitor the fuel rod operating conditions.

Objective:

The Objective of the Limiting Conditions for Operation is to assure the performance of the fuel rods.

Specifications:

A. Average Planar Linear Heat Generation Rate (APLHGR)

During ~~steady state power~~ operation, the APLHGR for each type of fuel as a function of average planar exposure shall not exceed the limiting values provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. For single recirculation loop operation, the limiting values shall be the values provided in the Core Operating Limits Report listed under the heading "Single Loop Operation." If at any time during ~~steady state~~ operation it is determined by normal surveillance that the limiting value for APLHGR is being exceeded, action shall be initiated within 15 minutes to restore operation to within the prescribed limits. If the APLHGR is not returned to within prescribed limits within two (2) hours of the reactor shall be brought to ~~the shutdown conditions~~ within ~~2~~ hours. Surveillance and corresponding action shall continue until reactor operation is within the prescribed limits.

3  
at ≥ 25%  
Rated  
Thermal  
Power

8  
at ≥ 25%  
Rated  
Thermal  
Power

4 10

4.11 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

4.11 REACTOR FUEL ASSEMBLIES

Applicability:

The Surveillance Requirements apply to the parameters which monitor the fuel rod operating conditions.

Objective:

The Objective of the Surveillance Requirements is to specify the type and frequency of surveillance to be applied to the fuel rods.

Specifications:

A. Average Planar Linear Heat Generation Rate (APLHGR)

The APLHGR for each type of fuel as a function of average planar exposure shall be determined daily during reactor operation at ≥ 25% rated thermal power, thereafter

6  
once within 12 hours after  
≥ 25% Rated Thermal Power  
and

6

APLHGR(s) shall be

12

; otherwise,

9

< 25% Rated Thermal Power

3.11 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

B. Linear Heat Generation Rate (LHGR)

at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power

During ~~steady state power~~ operation, the linear heat generation rate (LHGR) of any rod in any fuel assembly at any axial location shall not exceed the maximum allowable LHGR provided in the Core Operating Limits Report.

at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power

If at any time during ~~steady state~~ operation it is determined by normal surveillance that the limiting value for LHGR is being exceeded, action shall be initiated within 15 minutes to restore operation to within the prescribed limits. If the LHGR is not returned to within the prescribed limits within two (2) hours the reactor shall be brought to ~~shutdown condition~~ within 4 hours. Surveillance and corresponding action shall continue until reactor operation is within the prescribed limits.

4  
10

4.11 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

B. Linear Heat Generation Rate (LHGR)

The LHGR as a function of core height shall be checked daily during ~~reactor~~ operation at  $\geq 25\%$  rated thermal power.

6 thereafter

once within 12 hours after  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power and

6

LHGR(s) shall be

; otherwise,

12

9

< 25% Rated Thermal Power

3.11 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

C. Minimum Critical Power Ratio (MCPR)

8

at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power

1. During ~~steady state~~ ~~power~~ operation, the MCPR operating value shall be equal to or greater than the MCPR limits provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. For single recirculation loop operation, the MCPR limits at rated flow are also provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. For core flows other than rated, the Operating MCPR Limit shall be the above value multiplied by  $K_f$  where  $K_f$  is provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. If at any time during ~~steady state~~ operation it is determined by normal surveillance that the limiting value for MCPR is being exceeded, action shall be initiated within 15 minutes to restore operation to within the prescribed limits. If the steady-state MCPR is not returned to within the prescribed limits within two (2) hours, the reactor power shall be brought to shutdown condition, within 20 hours. Surveillance and corresponding action shall continue until reactor operation is within the prescribed limits.

4

10

4.11 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

C. Minimum Critical Power Ratio (MCPR)

6

thereafter,

MCPR shall be determined daily during ~~reactor power~~ operation at  $\geq 25\%$  rated thermal power and following any change in power level or distribution that would cause operation with a limiting control rod pattern as described in the bases for Specification 3.3.B.6.

once within 12 hours after  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power,

6

8

at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power

MCPR(s) shall be

12

; otherwise,

9

< 25% Rated Thermal Power

BASES:

III - when operating at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power

4.11 FUEL RODS

A. The APLHGR, LHGR and MCPR shall be checked daily to determine if fuel burnup, or control rod movement has caused changes in power distribution. Since changes due to burnup are slow, and only a few control rods are removed daily, a daily check of power distribution is adequate. For a limiting value to occur below 25% of rated thermal power, an unreasonably large peaking factor would be required, which is not the case for operating control rod sequences.

B. At certain times during plant startups and power changes the plant technical staff may determine that surveillance of APLHGR, LHGR and/or MCPR is necessary more frequently than daily. Because the necessity for such an augmented surveillance program is a function of a number of interrelated parameters, a reasonable program can only be determined on a case-by-case basis by the plant technical staff. The check of APLHGR, LHGR and MCPR will normally be done using the plant process computer. In the event that the computer is unavailable, the check will consist of either a manual calculation or a comparison of existing core conditions to those existing at the time of a previous check to determine if a significant change has occurred.

← Insert 1 → 12

C. Minimum Critical Power Ratio (MCPR) - Surveillance Requirement

At core thermal power levels less than or equal to 25%, the reactor will be operating at minimum recirculation pump speed and the moderator void content will be very small. For all designated control rod patterns which may be employed at this point, operating plant experience indicated that the resulting MCPR value is in excess of requirements by a considerable margin. With this low void content, any inadvertent core flow increase would only place operation in a more conservative mode relative to MCPR. During initial start-up testing of the plant, a MCPR evaluation will be made at 25% thermal power level with minimum recirculation pump speed. The MCPR margin will thus be demonstrated such that future MCPR evaluation below this power level will be shown to be unnecessary. The daily requirement for calculating MCPR above 25% rated thermal power is sufficient since power distribution shifts are very slow when there have not been significant power or control rod changes. The requirement for calculating MCPR when a limiting control rod pattern is approached ensures that MCPR will be known following a change in power or power shape (regardless of magnitude) that could place operation at a thermal limit.

6 - The 12 hour allowance after thermal power  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power is achieved is acceptable given the large inherent margin to operating limits at low power levels.

**4.11.B Bases, Page 228, Insert 1**

If a reactor power distribution limit is exceeded, an assumption regarding an initial condition of the DBA analysis, transient analyses, or the fuel design analysis may not be met. Therefore, prompt action should be taken to restore the APLHGR, LHGR or MCPR to within the required limits such that the plant operates within analyzed conditions and within design limits of the fuel rods. The 2 hour completion time is sufficient to restore the APLHGR, LHGR, or MCPR to within its limits and is acceptable based on the low probability of a transient or DBA occurring simultaneously with the APLHGR, LHGR, or MCPR out of specification.

Docket No. 50-271

BVY 99-139

Attachment 4

Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station

Proposed Technical Specification Change No. 224

Reactor Power Distribution Limits Applicability

Retyped Technical Specification Page

**Listing of Affected Technical Specifications Pages**

Replace the Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station Technical Specifications pages listed below with the revised pages. The revised pages contain vertical lines in the margin indicating the areas of change.

<b>Remove</b>	<b><u>Insert</u></b>
7	7
8	8
9	9
20	20
33	33
224	224
225	225
226	226
228	228

## 1.1 SAFETY LIMIT

B. Core Thermal Power Limit  
(Reactor Pressure < 800 psia  
or Core Flow < 10% of Rated)

When the reactor pressure is <800 psia or core flow <10% of rated, the core thermal power shall not exceed 25% of rated thermal power.

C. Power Transient

To ensure that the safety limit established in Specification 1.1A and 1.1B is not exceeded, each required scram shall be initiated by its expected scram signal. The safety limit shall be assumed to be exceeded when scram is accomplished by means other than the expected scram signal.

## D. Whenever the reactor is shutdown with irradiated fuel in the reactor vessel, the water level shall not be less than 12 inches above the top of the enriched fuel when it is seated in the core.

## 2.1 LIMITING SAFETY SYSTEM SETTING

$\Delta W$  = difference between two loop and single loop drive flow at the same core flow. This difference must be accounted for during single loop operation.  $\Delta W = 0$  for two loop operation.

In the event of operation at >25% Rated Thermal Power with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP greater than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be increased by the ratio:  $\frac{\text{MFLPD}}{\text{FRP}}$

where:

MFLPD = maximum fraction of limiting power density where the limiting power density is defined in the Core Operating Limits Report.

FRP = fraction of rated power (1593 MWt).

In the event of operation at >25% Rated Thermal Power with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP equal to or less than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be equal to or greater than 1.0.

## 1.1 SAFETY LIMIT

## 2.1 LIMITING SAFETY SYSTEM SETTING

For no combination of loop recirculation flow rate and core thermal power shall the APRM flux scram trip setting be allowed to exceed 120% of rated thermal power.

b. Flux Scram Trip Setting (Refuel or Startup and Hot Standby Mode)

When the reactor mode switch is in the REFUEL or STARTUP position, average power range monitor (APRM) scram shall be set down to less than or equal to 15% of rated neutron flux (except as allowed by Note 12 of Table 3.1.1). The IRM flux scram setting shall be set at less than or equal to 120/125 of full scale.

B. APRM Rod Block Trip Setting

1. When the mode switch is in the RUN position, the APRM rod block trip setting shall be as shown in Figure 2.1.1 and shall be:

$$S_{RB} \leq 0.66(W - \Delta W) + 42\%$$

where:

$S_{RB}$  = rod block setting in percent of rated thermal power (1593 MWt)

$W$  = percent rated two loop drive flow where 100% rated drive flow is that flow equivalent to  $48 \times 10^6$  lbs/hr core flow

## 1.1 SAFETY LIMIT

## 2.1 LIMITING SAFETY SYSTEM SETTING

$\Delta W$  = difference between two loop and single loop drive flow at the same core flow. This difference must be accounted for during single loop operation.  $\Delta W = 0$  for two loop operation.

In the event of operation at  $>25\%$  Rated Thermal Power with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP greater than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be increased by the ratio:

$$\frac{\text{MFLPD}}{\text{FRP}}$$

where:

MFLPD = maximum fraction of limiting power density where the limiting power density is defined in the Core Operating Limits Report.

FRP = fraction of rated power (1593 MWt).

In the event of operation at  $>25\%$  Rated Thermal Power with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP equal to or less than 1.0, the APRM gain shall be equal to or greater than 1.0.

- C. Reactor low water level scram setting shall be at least 127 inches above the top of the enriched fuel.

### 3.1 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

---

#### 3.1 REACTOR PROTECTION SYSTEM

Applicability:

Applies to the operability of plant instrumentation and control systems required for reactor safety.

Objective:

To specify the limits imposed on plant operation by those instrument and control systems required for reactor safety.

Specification:

- A. Plant operation at any power level shall be permitted in accordance with Table 3.1.1. The system response time from the opening of the sensor contact up to and including the opening of the scram solenoid relay shall not exceed 50 milliseconds.
- B. During operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power with the ratio of MFLPD to FRP greater than 1.0 either:
  - a. The APRM System gains shall be adjusted by the ratios given in Technical Specifications 2.1.A.1 and 2.1.B or
  - b. The power distribution shall be changed to reduce the ratio of MFLPD to FRP.

### 4.1 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

---

#### 4.1 REACTOR PROTECTION SYSTEM

Applicability:

Applies to the surveillance of the plant instrumentation and control systems required for reactor safety.

Objective:

To specify the type and frequency of surveillance to be applied to those instrument and control systems required for reactor safety.

Specification:

- A. Instrumentation systems shall be functionally tested and calibrated as indicated in Tables 4.1.1 and 4.1.2, respectively
- B. Once within 12 hours after  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power and once a day during operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power thereafter, the maximum fraction of limiting power density and fraction of rated power shall be determined and the APRM system gains shall be adjusted by the ratios given in Technical Specifications 2.1.A.1.a and 2.1.B.

BASES:4.1 REACTOR PROTECTION SYSTEM

- A. The scram sensor channels listed in Tables 4.1.1 and 4.1.2 are divided into three groups: A, B and C. Sensors that make up Group A are the on-off type and will be tested and calibrated at the indicated intervals. Initially the tests are more frequent than Yankee experience indicates necessary. However, by testing more frequently, the confidence level with this instrumentation will increase and testing will provide data to justify extending the test intervals as experience is accrued.

Group B devices utilize an analog sensor followed by an amplifier and bistable trip circuit. This type of equipment incorporates control room mounted indicators and annunciator alarms. A failure in the sensor or amplifier may be detected by an alarm or by an operator who observes that one indicator does not track the others in similar channels. The bistable trip circuit failures are detected by the periodic testing.

Group C devices are active only during a given portion of the operating cycle. For example, the IRM is active during start-up and inactive during full-power operation. Testing of these instruments is only meaningful within a reasonable period prior to their use.

- B. The ratio of MFLPD to FRP shall be checked once per day when operating at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power to determine if the APRM gains require adjustment. Because few control rod movements or power changes occur, checking these parameters daily is adequate. The 12 hour allowance after thermal power  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power is achieved is acceptable given the large inherent margin to operating limits at low power levels.

### 3.11 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

#### 3.11 REACTOR FUEL ASSEMBLIES

##### Applicability:

The Limiting Conditions for Operation associated with the fuel rods apply to these parameters which monitor the fuel rod operating conditions.

##### Objective:

The Objective of the Limiting Conditions for Operation is to assure the performance of the fuel rods.

##### Specifications:

#### A. Average Planar Linear Heat Generation Rate (APLHGR)

During operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power, the APLHGR for each type of fuel as a function of average planar exposure shall not exceed the limiting values provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. For single recirculation loop operation, the limiting values shall be the values provided in the Core Operating Limits Report listed under the heading "Single Loop Operation." If at any time during operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power it is determined by normal surveillance that the limiting value for APLHGR is being exceeded, APLHGR(s) shall be returned to within prescribed limits within two (2) hours; otherwise, the reactor shall be brought to  $< 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power within 4 hours. Surveillance and corresponding action shall continue until reactor operation is within the prescribed limits.

### 4.11 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

#### 4.11 REACTOR FUEL ASSEMBLIES

##### Applicability:

The Surveillance Requirements apply to the parameters which monitor the fuel rod operating conditions.

##### Objective:

The Objective of the Surveillance Requirements is to specify the type and frequency of surveillance to be applied to the fuel rods.

##### Specifications:

#### A. Average Planar Linear Heat Generation Rate (APLHGR)

The APLHGR for each type of fuel as a function of average planar exposure shall be determined once within 12 hours after  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power and daily during operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power thereafter.

### 3.11 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

---

#### B. Linear Heat Generation Rate (LHGR)

During operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power, the linear heat generation rate (LHGR) of any rod in any fuel assembly at any axial location shall not exceed the maximum allowable LHGR provided in the Core Operating Limits Report.

If at any time during operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power it is determined by normal surveillance that the limiting value for LHGR is being exceeded, LHGR(s) shall be returned to within the prescribed limits within two (2) hours; otherwise, the reactor shall be brought to  $< 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power within 4 hours. Surveillance and corresponding action shall continue until reactor operation is within the prescribed limits.

### 4.11 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

---

#### B. Linear Heat Generation Rate (LHGR)

The LHGR as a function of core height shall be checked once within 12 hours after  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power and daily during operation at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power thereafter.

### 3.11 LIMITING CONDITIONS FOR OPERATION

#### C. Minimum Critical Power Ratio (MCPR)

1. During operation at  $>25\%$  Rated Thermal Power the MCPR operating value shall be equal to or greater than the MCPR limits provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. For single recirculation loop operation, the MCPR Limits at rated flow are also provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. For core flows other than rated, the Operating MCPR Limit shall be the above value multiplied by  $K_f$  where  $K_f$  is provided in the Core Operating Limits Report. If at any time during operation at  $>25\%$  Rated Thermal Power it is determined by normal surveillance that the limiting value for MCPR is being exceeded, MCPR(s) shall be returned to within the prescribed limits within two (2) hours; otherwise, the reactor power shall be brought to  $<25\%$  Rated Thermal Power within 4 hours. Surveillance and corresponding action shall continue until reactor operation is within the prescribed limits.

### 4.11 SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

#### C. Minimum Critical Power Ratio (MCPR)

MCPR shall be determined once within 12 hours after  $>25\%$  Rated Thermal Power, daily during operation at  $>25\%$  Rated Thermal Power thereafter, and following any change in power level or distribution that would cause operation with a limiting control rod pattern as described in the bases for Specification 3.3.B.6.

BASES:4.11 FUEL RODS

- A. The APLHGR, LHGR and MCPR shall be checked daily when operating at  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power to determine if fuel burnup, or control rod movement has caused changes in power distribution. Since changes due to burnup are slow, and only a few control rods are removed daily, a daily check of power distribution is adequate. For a limiting value to occur below 25% of rated thermal power, an unreasonably large peaking factor would be required, which is not the case for operating control rod sequences. The 12 hour allowance after thermal power  $\geq 25\%$  Rated Thermal Power is achieved is acceptable given the large inherent margin to operating limits at low power levels.
- B. At certain times during plant startups and power changes the plant technical staff may determine that surveillance of APLHGR, LHGR and/or MCPR is necessary more frequently than daily. Because the necessity for such an augmented surveillance program is a function of a number of interrelated parameters, a reasonable program can only be determined on a case-by-case basis by the plant technical staff. The check of APLHGR, LHGR and MCPR will normally be done using the plant process computer. In the event that the computer is unavailable, the check will consist of either a manual calculation or a comparison of existing core conditions to those existing at the time of a previous check to determine if a significant change has occurred.

If a reactor power distribution limit is exceeded, an assumption regarding an initial condition of the DBA analysis, transient analyses, or the fuel design analysis may not be met. Therefore, prompt action should be taken to restore the APLHGR, LHGR or MCPR to within the required limits such that the plant operates within analyzed conditions and within design limits of the fuel rods. The 2 hour completion time is sufficient to restore the APLHGR, LHGR, or MCPR to within its limits and is acceptable based on the low probability of a transient or DBA occurring simultaneously with the APLHGR, LHGR, or MCPR out of specification.

C. Minimum Critical Power Ratio (MCPR) - Surveillance Requirement

At core thermal power levels less than or equal to 25%, the reactor will be operating at minimum recirculation pump speed and the moderator void content will be very small. For all designated control rod patterns which may be employed at this point, operating plant experience indicated that the resulting MCPR value is in excess of requirements by a considerable margin. With this low void content, any inadvertent core flow increase would only place operation in a more conservative mode relative to MCPR. During initial start-up testing of the plant, a MCPR evaluation will be made at 25% thermal power level with minimum recirculation pump speed. The MCPR margin will thus be demonstrated such that future MCPR evaluation below this power level will be shown to be unnecessary. The daily requirement for calculating MCPR above 25% rated thermal power is sufficient since power distribution shifts are very slow when there have not been significant power or control rod changes. The requirement for calculating MCPR when a limiting control rod pattern is approached ensures that MCPR will be known following a change in power or power shape (regardless of magnitude) that could place operation at a thermal limit.